
WORK SESSION OF SEPTEMBER 4, 2012               
 
Mayor Baratta called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Baratta, Deputy Mayors Cosgrove and Trawinski, Councilmembers 
Peluso and Swain. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Manager Metzler, Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski and Attorney 
Mondello. 
 
CLOSED SESSION RESOLUTION:  
 
Upon motion by Deputy Mayor Trawinski and a second by Councilmember Swain, 
the following closed session resolution was unanimously adopted at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 WHEREAS; the Open Public Meeting act of the State of New Jersey permits 
the public to be excluded from certain matters to be discussed by the Governing 
Body; and 
 
 WHEREAS; the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Fair Lawn desire to 
discuss Personnel - Group Short Term Disability; and 
 
 WHEREAS; these matters are ones which permit the exclusion of the public 
from such discussions; and 
 
 WHEREAS; minutes will be taken during this closed session and once the need 
for confidentiality no longer exists the minutes will be available to the public. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the Borough 
of Fair Lawn that the public be excluded since these matters as set forth above are 
ones which permit the exclusion of the public from such discussions.  
 
Mayor Baratta reconvened the Work Session at 7:52 p.m. 
 
FEMA FLOOD INSURANCE COVERAGE – PARKS BUILDING (FRANK COVELLI) 
 
Frank Covelli stated that the Borough has maintained a flood policy through FEMA 
on the masonry building at Memorial Park for a number of years and has made a 
claim on this policy after Hurricane Irene last year.   
 
Currently the Borough pays a premium of $10,803 which covers the building at 
$134,500 and $33,600 in content.  He thought the premium was too high and he 
knew that the building was worth more than $134,500.  FEMA has written a letter 
stating that the building is under insured.  The premium would be $72,872 to insure it 
to its proper value of $400,000. 



Page 2 Work Session September 4, 2012 
  
The building has pumps four feet off the ground but the flood waters came in at 
four feet six inches.  The pumps have been raised.  That was deemed a repair and 
was covered by FEMA.  In a relatively severe storm, that was the extent of the 
damage other than the cleanup costs. 
 
The biggest exposure in this building is cleanup.   Anyone that holds a FEMA policy 
is subject to a lot of external factors when it comes to how they adjudicate a 
claim.  For the cleanup they will probably give less than the Borough’s number. 
 
Mr. Covelli wanted to know if this was a policy the Mayor and Council wanted to 
maintain.  He did not believe they would want to insure the building for its true 
value at a premium of $73,000. 
 
Manager Metzler felt the Council should consider taking that $10,000 premium and 
putting it in to a dedicated by rider account to cover any costs there would be on 
the building.  If there were flood related damages and they did not have flood 
insurance, FEMA will not pay.  Mr. Covelli stated the JIF would not pay because it is 
in a flood zone and it was coverable by FEMA.  Manager Metzler said the other 
factor was that the OEM Coordinator was able to get a mitigation grant to put 
electronic flood gauges in both the Passaic and Saddle Rivers.  Now anyone in the 
Borough would be able to look at these flood gauges and know what the statuses 
of the rivers were.  The Parks Department has a good track record for getting 
everything out of there in a timely manner.  He felt the way to go was building a 
self insurance fund.  He suggested they keep in mind there could be a 
catastrophic event that would take the building down but it does have flood 
protection in terms of bulk heads, etc.  The elevation of the mechanicals as a result 
of Hurricane Irene limited the exposure compared to what it was in the past. 
 
Deputy Mayor Trawinski said this was not without precedent, back in the 1980’s the 
Borough created a self insurance fund dedicated by rider for liability which now in 
part led to the creation of the JIF’s.  He agreed with the concept.   
 
Mr. Covelli stated the greatest exposure Fair Lawn has is its pump stations that are 
in the flood zone. FEMA does not want to know about because they exclude them 
from coverage.  The Borough’s membership in the Bergen County Municipal Joint 
Insurance Fund is that much more valuable because it does cover that.  Deputy 
Mayor Trawinski stated under the Federal Disaster Program when the President 
declares an area a disaster area, in addition to getting the flood insurance they 
also can get aid in temporary help through the Department of Transportation 
which can help with the cleanup cost. 
 
There was a unanimous consensus to proceed with Manager Metzler’s suggestion 
to create a dedicated by rider account putting the policy amount of $10,000 in 
each year to cover any costs there will be on the building in case it floods. 



Page 3 Work Session September 4, 2012 
  
Deputy Mayor Trawinski felt they should have the Manager find out when this 
policy would come up for renewal and have a prorated portion set aside now. 
   
HADCO/KEM SITE – DECLARATION OF SITE IN NEED OF REHABILITATION (CHERYL   
BERGAILO) 
 
Cheryl Bergailo was present. 
 
Attorney Mondello advised that Bergen County United Way along with the 
Borough is interested in building 64 units at the Hadco/Kem site.  They have asked if 
the Mayor and Council would consider classifying that particular sight as an area 
in need of rehabilitation.  They would pick up an extra 5 points when they go out to 
get their Federal loans and tax credits.  He asked Cheryl Bergailo to review the 
criteria.  
 
Cheryl Bergailo stated it was a very easy process to get a site designated as a 
rehabilitation site.  The Municipality does not have the power of eminent domain 
over the lot.  It would have to be purchased in the general market place.  She put 
together a letter dated August 28, 2012 about how the site met the criteria.  The 
front portion has been redeveloped for CVS and Advanced Auto Parts and the 
back area is still as it was.  It does not meet the first criteria because there has 
been no persistent arrearage of property tax.  The second criteria it does meet 
because the infrastructure serving the site is at least 50 years old and in need of 
repair.  The third criteria were that a program of rehabilitation is expected to 
prevent further deterioration. 
 
She explained what the Council must do.  They must adopt a resolution referring 
the property to the Planning Board because they have to look at it and give their 
thoughts on it.  A second resolution must designate the area in need of 
rehabilitation.  She asked if they could take any action that night.  Municipal Clerk 
Kwasniewski said that technically they could because on the Agenda it says any 
action could be taken.   
 
Mayor Baratta wondered if it needs to be done tonight.  Attorney Mondello 
advised that the Planning Board meets on September 10, 2012.  Bergen United 
Way is under a lot of pressure to get this application in for these tax credits.  Deputy 
Mayor Trawinski said he did not have a problem with the concept.  He definitely 
thought it would meet the third criteria because the homes in that area are at 
least 50 years old.  Ms. Bergailo said the Borough Engineer told her the water 
system was upgraded on Maple Avenue.   
Manager Metzler stated that in every capital budget, the Council annually puts 
money into the infrastructure for both sewer and water.  Where the repairs are 
made are determined by the Engineer based upon a list of conditions and 
situations. 



Page 4 Work Session September 4, 2012 
  
Deputy Mayor Trawinski wondered if they needed an approval from the Special 
Master.  Attorney Mondello advised that he had spoken to him and he had no 
problem with it. 
 
There was a unanimous consensus to adopt the resolution tonight so that it could 
be forwarded to the Planning Board. 
 
Deputy Mayor Trawinski suggested the resolution be done on a Consent Agenda.  
Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski stated the Council had previously received it to 
review it. 
 
There was a unanimous consensus to place the resolution on a Consent Agenda at 
a Special Meeting later that evening. 
   
REVIEW OF TENTATIVE AGENDA: 
 
 Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski said the only item she had to add was the possible 
swearing in of a Police Officer.  Manager Metzler said they were waiting for one 
final piece of information.      
           
 COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS: 
 
Councilmember Swain stated that River Road was meeting Thursday morning.  
ADA is meeting next week and the Green Team was meeting in the near future. 
 
Councilmember Peluso stated that the Garden Committee was still out pulling 
weeds so if anyone was interested there are a lot of spaces that need to be 
cleaned up.  Also the Flood Committee is meeting September 6th and 13th. 
 
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove stated the Community Center will be hosting a dinner 
dance on October 27th with the Cameos.  Tickets are $60.00 person.  They are 
working on obtaining a rider to include the ADA Committee.   
 
The Shade Tree Committee met with DPW Superintendent Ron Conte to review 
some issues.   
 
The Fire Department will hold its election in December. 
 
Deputy Mayor Trawinski said the Planning Board approved a minor subdivision 
which was a lot line moved for a property which fronts on Hopper but was actually 
on the corner of Edward.  Their driveway encroached on a neighbor’s property.  
The neighbor’s worked it out.  The Planning Board will continue the matter of the 
Plaza Road development next month. 
 



Page 5 Work Session September 4, 2012 
  
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove stated that he met with Stu Herrmann and Steve Keil to 
talk about reforming the EDC Committee.  They talked about recruitment and 
retention.  He asked to include former Mayor Landzettel and former Mayor 
Weinstein in a meeting.  At the Council’s permission he would like them to sit in at a 
meeting. 
 
Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski said they would have to reconstitute the committee.  
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove said they were trying to get members together to reform 
the committee.   
 
There was a unanimous consensus to include former Mayor Landzettel and former 
Mayor Weinstein to the reconstituted committee when it is formed. 
 
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove stated that he will be speaking at an Access for All 
Summit meeting about the ADA Committee and the Community Center forging 
together and also about the park.  Steve Weinstein will also be one of the 
speakers. Mayor Baratta stated it will be held on Saturday, September 22 at 8:00 
a.m. at the Law and Public Safety Building in Mahwah. 
 
Mayor Baratta stated the Environmental Commission will be meeting tomorrow 
night.  Property Maintenance starts their meetings next Wednesday.  She has been 
working the last couple of months with Radburn School and the Principal about 
traffic safety in the mornings.  They had a number of meetings with Traffic Safety 
Officer Franco and members of the PTO.  They met last week and decided they 
would do a striped cross walk for the children.  The parents are the biggest 
offenders.  A stop sign will be placed on Alden.  That is going to be a non-
expensive solution towards their problem.  They would like to have a dedicated 
drop off point but they decided to do the striping first to see if that works when 
school starts.  If they need to do anything further they will look into it.  Traffic Safety 
Officer Franco was terrific to work with. 
 
Deputy Mayor Trawinski wondered if the School Board was aware of this. Mayor 
Baratta said their maintenance people were present.  Traffic Safety Officer Franco 
will put a guard at the intersection of Howard and Alden Roads.  They were going 
to get the Radburn Association involved to pave the path the children use.  They 
plan on taking it one step at a time. 
 
BURGLAR ALARM ORDINANCE: 
 
Manager Metzler asked to put this item on the next Work Session. 
   
UPDATE ON BOROUGH INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES, NEXT STEP:  
 
Manager Metzler reported that he is getting price quotes for a major overhaul of 
the Borough’s website.  Effectively it would make the website interactive with 24 



Page 6 Work Session September 4, 2012 
  
hour access to the Municipal Building with software that would allow people to file 
for their dog licenses, permits, pay fines, etc.  Hopefully within the next two months 
he would be prepared to give them the costs.  He and Jim Van Kruiningen had a 
conference call with the IT consultant to discuss the capability of going paperless 
for the Council meetings.  There was also a discussion on what the cost would be 
for all of them to have access.  There would be a monthly cost to run this.  The IT 
Consultant has given the Borough a proposal that had no monthly cost associated 
with it.   
 
Manager Metzler said he was concerned about continuity of government.  They 
do back up the files every night but unfortunately those backed up files are kept in 
the Municipal Building.  Every twenty-nine days they go to the Library.  The reality is 
if a catastrophic event took place, the Borough would lose 28 days of data.  They 
have solicited proposals to have back up computers in the Community Center 
with a dedicated fiber line.  If there was every anything catastrophic that 
happened to this building, the Community Center would be where they would go 
until they found rented space while the Municipal Building was rehabilitated.  He 
was also looking at a telephone system that would work through the computer 
network. Within two hours there would be phone and computer access.  The other 
benefit of the dedicated fiber line would be the proximity to the high school.  The 
school already has a dedicated fiber line which means the Police Desk would be 
able to look at all of the security cameras.  He has asked ATON for a proposal but 
they will have to go out to bid for that work. 
 
Deputy Mayor Trawinski stated Manager Metzler should talk to the League of 
Municipalities about the process of paying fees because a number of towns have 
done this.  Councilmember Swain wondered about the Municipal Court debt.  
Manager Metzler said that the software exists so that any service that the Borough 
provides, a resident from home would be able to go online and process it.  He was 
not clear on whether the resident would have to come in for the final paperwork.   
 
Deputy Mayor Trawinski said in regard to the paperless, Manager Metzler should 
talk to the County IT Director who literally is rolling it out as they speak.  The Peasac 
has full complete back up capability and there was more than enough capacity 
to serve all of the 70 towns in Bergen County.  Some towns do use it for total back 
up.  It would require a dedicated fiber link into the County’s system.  A secondary 
back up could also be done to the trunk radio system as well.   
 
Manager Metzler said he would pass this information on to ATON.  The reason the 
Community Center seemed like the logical place for the backup was should there 
ever be an event that the Borough  could not function out of the Municipal 
Building, that is where they would get the government offices up and running 
literally over night.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski said it could be provided anywhere 
from a cloud or on a server.  One of the things that the Emergency Management 
people will tell you is that if they were looking for that capability it would have to 



Page 7 Work Session September 4, 2012 
  
be in that geographic area that is removed from the principal location.  The last 
Municipal Building to burn down was Hasbrouck Heights which was not that long 
ago.  He suggested that Manager Metzler talk to people in Hasbrouck Heights 
about some of the experiences they went through during their catastrophe. 
 
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove wondered who was judging whether the Borough was at 
capacity or whether they needed new servers.  Manager Metzler said they 
depended on the IT consultant.  Five years is usually the life of the servers and the 
Borough is rapidly reaching that point.  On the day to day problems that come up, 
Jim VanKruiningen tries to trouble shoot the problem and if he can’t then the 
consultant is called in. 
 
4TH JULY FIREWORKS: 
 
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove said that he and Councilmember Peluso discussed the 4th 
of July Fireworks.  He attended Montville’s 4th of July Fireworks celebration that was 
free because they had a carnival that they ran for a few days and had music.  He 
and Councilmember Peluso decided to get the Council’s permission to look into 
this and bring some type of package back to them.  He would like to keep the 
fireworks but also be able to bring in some revenue.  They are going to meet with 
someone in Montville who has said they actually made money some years. 
 
Councilmember Peluso said it was a bigger event for a whole weekend.  They 
have a talent show based on American Idol.  He would like to showcase some 
groups in town. 
 
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove said the whole idea is to bring people in for free.  
Manager Metzler said that there is a planning guide for Fair Lawn Day in the OEM 
office, which may be helpful.   
 
There was a unanimous consensus to explore this idea.                    
 
SPEED TABLE GARWOOD ROAD: 
 
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove said he had a few residents approach him about 
Garwood Road which is a long road and that people are speeding excessively.  
Some of the residents saw the speed table on 11th Street and would like to put one 
on Garwood Road.  He wondered if they could, as a Council, recommend this to 
Traffic Safety Officer Franco.  Mayor Baratta suggested that Traffic Safety Officer 
Franco look at the area.  Councilmember Swain said she would like to see a traffic 
report.  Manager Metzler will bring this matter to Traffic Safety Officer Franco. 
 
 
 
 



Page 8 Work Session September 4, 2012 
  
REQUEST BY MAC FOR STAY OF PROPERTY TAXES: 
 
Attorney Mondello said the sale of the Blue Hill property has been going on for 
about a year and a half.  He was originally in favor of staying the taxes because 
the last update on the property from Green Acres was that it was going to be 
another six months before they could determine if there were any environmental 
problems.  They all know there are not any issues.  Two weeks ago Green Acres 
approved this application.  He believed the closing will happen in a month or two.  
At this juncture he would not recommend staying the taxes. 
 
There was a unanimous consensus to accept Attorney Mondello’s 
recommendation. 
          
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS – RESIDENT SERVICE ANALYSIS 
PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE VS. SCHEDULED MAINTENANCE VS. EMERGENCY WORK 
 
Manager Metzler stated that Councilmember Swain had received a call from a 
resident about a tree that was damaged during Hurricane Irene.  He looked into 
the matter and reported back to Councilmember Swain and assumed the matter 
was taken care of.  Several months went by and Councilmember Swain again 
followed up and he received a different story.  He has several concerns that he 
wanted the Council to be aware of.   
 
In 2010, as a result of the loss of State aid positions were eliminated, but they have 
never done an analysis as to the impact on services.  They are operating less 
expensively but perhaps not more efficiently.  He has begun a process whereby 
Public Works and Recreation will track the work they are doing each day for 
several months.  He suspected they have become a reactive, instead of proactive 
community in terms of services they are providing.  He cannot report what 
percentage of preventative maintenance is being done because it is not reported 
back to him.  He did not know what percentage of the day is spent on 
maintenance or what percentage is being spent on emergency repairs.   
 
There is no anticipation on the part of the supervisors as to what constitutes a good 
day’s work.  For example, if a crew is sent out to paint fire hydrants and it takes 15 
minutes per hydrant, they should be able to paint 28 hydrants in a day.  However, 
currently there is no measure as to how many were actually painted.  He was 
putting a plan in place that will take at least a year, but he will report back as he 
starts to gather information to help identify what is being done in preventative 
maintenance, regular maintenance and emergency work.  He will also indentify 
non-productive time to ensure it is kept at a minimum and that they are 
maximizing the efficiency of Borough personnel. 
 
The Department Heads know there are certain expectations as to what needs to 
be done and the Council needs to know if those obligations are not being met.  



Page 9 Work Session September 4, 2012 
  
Because they are grossly undermanned in Public Works they are constantly sharing 
employees, but they are not necessarily sharing the right people for the right job.   
 
He reviewed the form that will be given out for every vehicle, which will be broken 
down into four categories:  preventative maintenance, maintenance, emergency 
maintenance and non-productive time.  He will sit down with Department Heads 
and Supervisors to determine what they consider to be preventative maintenance 
and what percentage of that maintenance is being performed.   
 
Mayor Baratta stated that they might want to consider putting GPS in new or 
existing vehicles, as it helps cut down on fuel consumption, service maintenance 
and lets them know if someone is doing too much idling, fast accelerating, etc.   It 
also helps with liability if someone says they got nicked by a Fair Lawn car, as they 
can prove that the car was never there.   Deputy Mayor Trawinski stated that it 
also helps when someone says they saw a Borough vehicle driving on the Garden 
State Parkway.  Mayor Baratta stated that it also allows them to dispatch the 
nearest truck when a call comes in for a pot hole repair or such.   
 
Manager Metzler stated that the first improvement Council will see in the 
Manager’s Monthly Report is that the Department reports will be similar to 
Engineering, who lists what percentage has been completed.  This plan has been 
well received by the Department Heads and Supervisors who understand the 
benefit will be that they can operate more efficiently.   
 
Councilmember Swain stated that the damaged tree is still there after one year.  
Manager Metzler explained that Downes Tree Service will not be removing the tree 
until the winter because that is the earliest they can get there.  The Shade Tree 
Department used to have eight employees; now they have only three.  They have 
senior repairers cutting grass instead of a part time employee at $10.00 an hour.  
This is a collective failure as a result of reducing the work force.  He was not 
suggesting they hire more people but they have to become more efficient with 
the employees they have.  They were still cleaning up from Hurricane Irene.  
Councilmember Swain asked that Manager Metzler reach out to the Berdan 
Avenue residents and apprise them of the situation, as it wasn’t right that they 
have been waiting for over one year.  Manager Metzler stated that he would.   
 
REPORT ON MUNICIPAL BUILDING SUMMER HOURS 
 
Manager Metzler stated that through the second week of August there was a 
reduction of 51 hours of overtime.  Two hours of comp time were reported, which 
was used outside of the payroll period.  If an employee worked two hours for an 
evening meeting then they worked two hours less the next day.   
 
There were two holidays during this time period for which employees were paid 8 
¾ hours, but the holiday pay was seven hours.  The Department Heads can show 



Page 10 Work Session September 4, 2012 
  
how each employee made up the 1¾ hours by either working through lunch, 
coming in early, working late or using comp time.   
 
Mayor Baratta noted that there were less than five complaints from residents.  
Manager Metzler stated that the Health Department received two positive 
comments.  Mayor Baratta stated that residents liked the extended weekend hours 
at Recycling.  Manager Metzler stated that they are now back to normal hours at 
Recycling and the Municipal Building has one more day in this pay period before 
they return to regular hours.  The summer hours were extremely popular with the 
employees.  After 4:30 p.m. things were quiet but it enabled employees to get 
some quality work done.  He will give a final report after they have completed the 
final pay cycle.   
 
Mayor Baratta asked if Manager Metzler would consider extending this schedule.  
Manager Metzler stated that he will gather feedback at the next Department 
Head meeting.  The consensus was that it was popular.  Councilmember Swain 
noted that he had received a memo from the Department of Labor because 
someone had complained.  Manager Metzler stated that the resident filed a 
complaint with the Comptroller’s Office that the employees were being paid for 
five days per week while only working four days.  In reality they were still working a 
35 hour week.  He explained this was done by Resolution and what the record 
keeping was, and they were satisfied.   
                    
SERVICE FOR FEE BY ORDINANCE – POSSIBLE CHANGES 
 
RECREATION CENTER PIANO  
 
Manager Metzler stated that he would like to increase the fee for the piano rental 
at the Community Center from $60 to $90 because it costs $85.00 to tune the 
piano afterwards.   
 
REVIEW OTHER DEPARTMENTS 
 
He noted that the former CFO used to recommend getting ordinances in place 
before the new calendar year so that on January 1st the fees went into effect.  He 
asked if the Council wanted him to review Borough fees and come back with a 
recommendation as to adjustments for next year.  Councilmember Swain stated 
that the last review was when Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski was Manager.  
Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski stated that the Department Heads spend countless 
hours working on ideas only to have the Council say no.  Many of their current fees 
are far below other towns.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski felt the Department Heads 
should do a review and report back.   
 
Councilmember Swain stated that this sounded like a time consuming job for the 
Department Heads.  Perhaps fees should be raised as things are brought to their 



Page 11 Work Session September 4, 2012 
  
attention.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski found it helpful to see what similar municipalities 
are charging.  Manager Metzler explained that this type of research was time 
consuming.  He wanted to be sure there was a willingness on the part of the 
Council to look at the recommendations before they went ahead and did it.  
Deputy Mayor Trawinski stated they would look at suggestions but they need to 
recognize that residents are struggling.  Councilmember Swain agreed.  She was 
concerned about hitting residents with more increases.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski 
stated that they needed to look at what they pay for services.  Deputy Mayor 
Cosgrove agreed with Councilmember Swain that they should look at specific 
items and raise fees if they were losing money.  He did not think they needed a full 
study.  Mayor Baratta agreed.  Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski stated that some fees 
were raised in 2010.  Manager Metzler stated that they introduced a fee schedule 
in 2007 that listed amounts for a three year period.   
 
There was consensus to increase the piano fee at the Recreation Center from $60 
to $90.   
 
Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski asked if they wanted to do an ordinance for this fee 
change.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski suggested doing everything at once because of 
the publishing fees involved.  Deputy Mayor Cosgrove suggested reviewing the 
2007 Fee Schedule to see if there were items in need of an increase.  
 
CHANGES IN CABLE PROVIDED FREE SERVICE        
 
Manager Metzler stated that Cablevision went digital and the old cable boxes 
were removed.  There were concerns at the Community Center where they had 
ten boxes, because now they only get one box for free.  The Municipal Building will 
get one free box but both OEM Director Marks and the EOC use televisions to 
monitor CNN.  He recommended putting a cable box in the EOC for a cost of 
$3.20 per month and eliminating the box in OEM.  
 
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove asked about the televisions on the work out equipment.  
Manager Metzler stated that they will be removed because they would have to 
wire an outlet to each treadmill for electric and install a shelf for the box.    
Municipal Clerk Kwasniewski suggested moving one television into the exercise 
room.   
 
Councilmember Swain asked if they could get a better deal from Verizon FiOS.  
Manager Metzler stated that both systems run parallel so there would not be a 
difference.  Deputy Mayor Cosgrove stated that he will discuss this issue at the 
501(c)3 Committee meeting to see if they would pay the expenses for the boxes.  
It did not make sense to have televisions on the exercise equipment that they paid 
for that could not be used.  Deputy Mayor Swain agreed.  If they want to keep 
people exercising they needed television as a distraction.   
 



Page 12 Work Session September 4, 2012 
  
There was unanimous consensus to allow Manager Metzler to use his discretion for 
the Municipal Building and have him look into options for the Community Center.   
  
OEM DIRECTOR JOB DESCRIPTION 
 
Manager Metzler stated that OEM Director Marks was retiring at the end of the 
year, so there will be a part time position available that he would like to advertise.   
 
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove inquired as to the type of certification that was required 
presently versus a new position.  Manager Metzler stated that the applicant 
needed two years experience of planning, development and administration of 
emergency response activities such as those provided by a line officer, Police, Fire, 
Rescue Medical or a certified or associate emergency manager in the Emergency 
Management unit, either public, private or military.   
 
Deputy Mayor Cosgrove asked if an applicant had to be certified now like OEM 
Director Marks was.  Manager Metzler stated that OEM Director Marks was certified 
when he became Director, but they have to recertify every five years.  Deputy 
Mayor Cosgrove asked if they were changing the requirements since the job 
description says “or”.  Manager Metzler stated that he added that portion.  Deputy 
Mayor Trawinski stated that they treat this like a part time position but it is really a 
full time position. Manager Metzler asked if they wanted to make it a fulltime 
position. Mayor Baratta stated that she was fine with the way it was.  
Councilmember Swain agreed.   
 
Councilmember Peluso asked if there was anyone on staff interested in the 
position.  Manager Metzler stated that a former chief of an emergency service 
and a deputy in Emergency Management had both indicated their interest.  
Deputy Mayor Trawinski thought there might be one retired Police officer who may 
also be interested.  Manager Metzler stated that he did not want to post the 
position until he had Council approval.   
 
Councilmember Swain asked how many hours per week the OEM Director would 
work.  Manager Metzler stated that if the position goes to a current employee, it 
will be made clear that the work has to be done after the regular work day.  There 
are benefits to being on staff and being the part time OEM Director because 
someone can be moved over to work the hours that are needed.  There is a lot of 
responsibility and it grows every year.  The Emergency Plan must be rewritten in 
2013.  The job description states that an emergency exercise is required once per 
year.   
 
There was unanimous consensus that Manager Metzler proceed with posting the 
position for OEM Director.   
 
 



Page 13 Work Session September 4, 2012 
  
UPDATE – ROUTE 208 BUS ACCESS PEDESTRIAN SAFETY ISSUE 
 
Manager Metzler stated that he attended meetings with NJ Transit and State DOT 
representatives.  The State is going to be repaving Route 208 in 2013.  He raised the 
issue about buses discharging passengers on Route 208 and the fact that there are 
no sidewalks.  The State indicated a willingness to install sidewalks but not maintain 
them.      
 
He, Engineer Garrison and Traffic Safety Officer Franco met with NJ Transit.  The bus 
stops along route 208 are designated bus stops by NJ Transit but are not approved 
by the DOT.  NJ Transit has indicated they may eliminate those stops.  There is 
another bus that those commuters could get which goes to the Port Authority.  
They discussed the possibility of the bus leaving Route 208 from the Promenade, 
with a drop off/pick up point within the premises.  NJ Transit will investigate further 
and get back to them.  They were provided with photographs and mapping 
showing every place where they drop off commuters and what the issues were.  
The issue may be resolved by having sidewalks installed or by simply removing the 
stops along Route 208.   
 
Mayor Baratta asked if NJ Transit conceded that it was dangerous to drop 
commuters off on a highway.  Manager Metzler stated that NJ Transit asked about 
making these permanent bus stops.  Traffic Safety Officer Franco had advised 
them that they would be violating the law if they did so, as commuters cannot be 
picked up on a State Highway, but they went and did it on their own.  Mayor 
Baratta stated that since this was recent issue, she wondered where the 
commuters were dropped off before.   
 
Manager Metzler explained that this was an express bus that starts in Midland Park, 
with only five or six stops.  Mayor Baratta wondered how the ten to 15 commuters 
were going to get home now.  Manager Metzler stated that they talked about 
having the bus loop around Plaza Road but then it would no longer be considered 
an express bus.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski stated if they do not fix the problem, it will 
only be exasperated when Landmark is built.  Manager Metzler stated there is a 
sidewalk from Route 208 on the Ambulance Corps side, although it is covered with 
debris.  Deputy Mayor Trawinski stated that there may be a sidewalk but the speed 
of the cars using the ramp makes it unsafe.  Manager Metzler concluded by 
stating that he will report back to the Council once he hears back from NJ  
Transit.   
 
APPOINTMENT TO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
Manager Metzler explained that the current representatives, Deputy Mayor 
Cosgrove and Councilmember Peluso needed to be reappointed for a new term.  
Both Councilmembers agreed to remain on as representatives to Community 
Development.     



Page 14 Work Session September 4, 2012 
  
 
SPECIAL MEETING 
 
Upon motion by Deputy Mayor Cosgrove and a second by Councilmember Swain, 
the Work Session was adjourned to Special Meeting at 9:20 p.m. 
 
Mayor Baratta reconvened the Work Session at 9:25 p.m. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Craig Miller, 5 Ramapo Terrace stated that the striping on Howard Place was 
completed and there were construction barriers blocking off some of the parking 
spaces leading to the gravel road.  He asked if the gravel area was going to be 
paved.  Mayor Baratta stated that it would not.  The area, which belongs to the 
Radburn Association, is too large to pave.  Eventually the Board of Education will 
put in a sidewalk or close off some parking spaces to make a drop off point if 
necessary.  He concluded by stating that he liked having the Recycling Center 
open all day on Saturday.   
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
Upon motion by Deputy Mayor Trawinski and a second by Deputy Mayor Cosgrove      
the following closed session resolution was unanimously adopted at 9:30 p.m. 
 
 WHEREAS; the Open Public Meeting act of the State of New Jersey permits 
the public to be excluded from certain matters to be discussed by the Governing 
Body; and 
 
 WHEREAS; the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Fair Lawn desire to 
discuss Pending Litigation – Harraka, Contract Negotiations – 41-29 Dunkerhook 
Road, Blue & White Collar Union, Board of Education – Vehicle Maintenance, City 
of Garfield and Borough of Lodi – Animal Control and Borough of Saddle Brook - 
Recycling; and 
 
 WHEREAS; these matters are ones which permit the exclusion of the public 
from such discussions; and 
 
 WHEREAS; minutes will be taken during this closed session and once the need 
the confidentiality no longer exists the minutes will be available to the public. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the Borough 
of Fair Lawn that the public be excluded since these matters as set forth above are 
ones which permit the exclusion of the public from such discussions.  
 
 



Page 15 Work Session September 4, 2012 
  
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Upon motion by Deputy Mayor Trawinski and a second by Councilmember Swain, 
the Work Session was adjourned at 10:25 p.m. 

             
     Respectfully submitted, 

            
             
      ________________________________________                            
      Joanne M. Kwasniewski, RMC/CMC/MMC  
      Municipal Clerk       
                

The undersigned have read and approve the foregoing minutes.  
 
 

__________________________ 
Mayor Jeanne Baratta 

 
                                                        ____________________________  
Deputy Mayor John Cosgrove   Councilman Kurt Peluso   

     
                                                            ______________________________   
Councilwoman Lisa Swain   Deputy Mayor Ed Trawinski   
 
 
 
 


